SCR



Selection and Constitutional Review Committee

Notice of a meeting, to be held in Committee Room 1 (Fougères Room), Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford, Kent TN23 1PL on Wednesday 10th June 2009 at 6.30pm.

The Members of this Committee are:-

Cllr. Clokie (Chairman)

Cllr. Bartlett (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs Ayres, Bradberry, Davidson, Davison, Goddard, Mrs Heyes, Miss Hodgkinson, Kemp, Mrs Martin, Wells

NB: Under the Council's Public Participation Scheme, members of the public can submit a petition, ask a question or speak concerning any item contained on this Agenda (Procedure Rule 9 refers)

Agenda

Page Nos.

- 1. **Apologies/Substitutes** To receive notification of substitutes in accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2(iii)
- 2. **Declarations of Interest** Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council on the 24th May 2007 relating to items on this agenda should be made here. The <u>nature</u> as well as the existence of any such interest must also be declared
- 3. **Minutes** To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 5th May 2009

Part I – For Decision

Annual Governance Statement

Part II – For Information

None for this Meeting	
DWS/AEH 2 nd June 2009	



Queries concerning this agenda? Please contact Danny Sheppard:
Telephone: 01233 330349 Email: danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

Selection & Constitutional Review Committee

Minutes of a Meeting of the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee held in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the **5**th **May 2009**

Present:

Cllr Clokie (Chairman);

Cllr. Bartlett (Vice-Chairman);

Cllrs. Davidson, Davison, Goddard, Mrs Hicks, Miss Hodgkinson, Kemp, Mrs Martin, Wells.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2 (iii) Councillor Mrs Hicks attended as Substitute Member for Councillor Mrs Heyes.

Apology:

Cllr. Mrs Heyes.

Also Present:

Chief Executive, Head of Legal & Democratic Services, Senior Member Services & Scrutiny Support Officer.

545 Minutes

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the meeting of this Committee held on the 5th March 2009 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

546 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 – Councillor Call for Action and New Scrutiny Functions

The report provided an overview of the principal new functions for scrutiny arising from the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Police and Justice Act 2006 and advised of the need to amend the Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to take account of these changes, together with other consequential changes to the Council's Constitution.

A Member said he had concerns about the ability of the County Council to set up Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committees with the Districts. In his view there was a need to proceed with caution as other Joint Committees set up by the County Council had not involved equal working. The Leader said he viewed this more positively as it was giving the Districts a voice and a vote on issues which they may previously not have had. There was a requirement for the County Council, and other partners, to make information available to a District's Overview & Scrutiny

Committee in relation to targets within the Local Area Agreement as well as other information which could help the work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee more generally.

Recommended:

- That (i) the Overview & Scrutiny Committee's Terms of Reference be amended to include responsibility for considering "Councillor Call for Action" under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.
 - (ii) the Overview & Scrutiny Committee be designated as the Committee responsible for Crime and Disorder issues under the Police and Justice Act 2006 and the Terms of Reference be amended to reflect this.
 - (iii) The Head of Legal & Democratic Services report to a future meeting of the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee and the Overview & Scrutiny Committee with a suggested protocol for Members regarding the handling of "Councillor Calls for Action".

547 Background and Principles of Political Balance and Administrative Structure

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services presented the Political Balance for the Authority and sought to agree a number of other constitutional matters which needed to be recommended to the Annual Meeting of the Council on the 14th May 2009.

Recommended:

- That (i) the Political Balance of the Authority as contained in Appendix A to these Minutes be adopted, subject to the Council agreeing that the requirements of the Political Balance Regulations be not applied to the Membership of the Appeals and the Audit Committee and the Sub-Committee of the Licensing and Health & Safety Committee established under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005.
 - (ii) the size of the Executive be seven Members, i.e. a Leader and six Portfolio Holders.
 - (iii) the split of functions of Executive Members be as set out below: -

Leader of the Council
Resource Management and Control
Cultural Services
Development, Partnerships and Personnel
Environmental Services and IT
Housing, Property and Corporate Governance

Communications, Parking & Licensing, Customer Services and Community Safety

(iv) the following Committees be constituted for the 2009/10 Municipal Year as detailed in Part 3 of the Constitution:

Audit
Planning
Overview and Scrutiny
Selection and Constitutional Review
Licensing and Health & Safety
Appointments
Appeals

Standards (including an Assessment Panel; a Hearings Panel and a Review Panel)

Joint Arrangements – Joint Transportation Board

NB: Details of Members appointed to Membership of each Committee etc by Group Leaders is shown at Appendix B to these Minutes. Note: This will be subject to amendments from Group Leaders.

- (v) the Council appoint the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen for each Committee etc as shown in Appendix B.
- (vi) the Scheme of Executive and Council Delegations as set out in Part 3 of the Constitution be reaffirmed.
- (vii) the intention of the Executive to reconstitute the Forums and Groups as listed in Part 3 Appendix 2 to the Constitution be noted.

548 Representatives on Outside Bodies/Organisations

The report of the Head of Legal & Democratic Services gave details of those organisations or outside bodies to which the Council appointed or nominated representatives, and the names of the Members of the Council and others who currently served in this capacity. Details of attendance by this Council's appointed representatives at meetings of the organisations during the past year (where known) and retirement dates were also shown. The covering report also provided additional information about the Ashford Almshouses and Parochial Charities; the Julie Rose Stadium Board; River Stour Internal Drainage Board; and South East England Councils (formerly known as SEERA).

Resolved:

That the names of the persons to be appointed or nominated as Members or Substitute Members (as the case may be) to the organisations listed in Appendix C to these Minutes be agreed.

549 Annual Meeting – Order of Proceedings

The Committee considered the Order of Proceedings for the Annual Meeting of the Council including the movers and seconders of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and the vote of thanks to the retiring Mayor. The Committee also discussed which Members would be the movers and seconders for the Election of the Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council and the Executive Members.

Resolved:

NOSOIVOU.
That the Head of Legal & Democratic Services prepare the Order of Proceedings for the Annual Meeting of the Council on the basis of the advice of this Committee.
DWS

Queries concerning these Minutes? Please contact Danny Sheppard: Telephone: 01233 330349 Email: danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

APPENDIX A (Minute No. 547/5/09 refers)

THE POLITICAL BALANCE CALCULATION FINAL ARRANGEMENTS MAY 2009

A.1 All Committees to which balance applies

	Committee	Seats/Committee		Total Seats
1 x 19	Overview and Scrutiny	19	=	19
1 x 14	Planning	14	=	14
1 x 13	Licensing and Health & Safety	13	=	13
1 x 12	Selection	12	=	12
1 x 8	Audit	8	=	8
1 x 5	Appointments	5	=	5
		Total		71

B. Percentage of group in relation to total membership of the authority

43 members =		%
28 Conservative 8 Liberal Democrat 3 Ashford Independent 2 Labour 2 Independent	= = = =	65.11627 18.60465 6.9767441 4.65116 4.65116

99.99998

C.1 Allocation of Seats on Committees in proportion to Group strength

	Con	LD	Al	Lab	Ind	Total
Committee						
1 x 19	12	4	1	1	1	19
O&S						
1 x 14 Planning	9	2	1	1	1	14
1 x 12 Selection	8	2	1	*1	0	12
1 x 13 Licensing,	8	2	1	1	1	13
Health & Safety						
1 x 8 Audit	5	1	1	0	**1	8
1 x 5	3	1	1***	0	0	5
Appointments						
	45	12 (13)**	6***	4*	4 (3)**	71
Totals	(46.232551)	(13.209301)	(4.9534883)	(3.3023236)	(3.3023236)	

NB: During the rounding up and down of the percentage figures, it was not possible to achieve overall balance, and

- The Labour Group took the available seat to them and the Independent Group on the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee.
- ** 2. The Group Leaders wished to retain one of the Independent Members on the Audit Committee (in line with the previous arrangement) to draw upon his previous experience as a Local Authority Auditor. The Liberal Democrat Group gifted a seat on the Audit Committee to the Independent Group to enable this arrangement to continue to apply.
- *** 3. The Ashford Independent Group needed to gift one seat to the Conservative Group. A seat on the Appointments Committee was offered, however the Leader of the Conservative Group was happy for the Ashford Independent Group to keep this seat.

C.2 Allocation of seats on all ordinary Committees to achieve overall proportionality

Political Group entitlement in relation to all seats: 71

Conservative	46.232551	=	46	
Liberal Democrat	13.209301	=	13	
Ashford Independent	4.9534883	=	5	
Labour	3.3023236	=	3)
Independent	3.3023236	=	3)+1
hetween them				-

Total 71

D. Committees to which balance will not apply either as a direct result of statute or the Council agreeing, i.e. no member votes against this arrangement, on each occasion the Council adopts a revised political balance for the Authority.

			TOTAL	71
°1 x 7	Local Development Framework Task Group		=	7
^x 1 x 7	Joint Transportation Board		=	7
° 1 x 19	Policy Advisory Group		=	19
° 1 x 15	Community Partnership Groups		=	15
+1 x 5	Standards	(Special arrangements apply as to the Membership of this Committee) ♦See note below re Sub- Committees	=	5
*1 x 13	Licensing Health & Safety	3 Members per meeting drawn on rota from a panel of 13 Members	=	13
*1 x 15	Appeals	3 Members per meeting drawn on rota from a panel of 15 Members	=	15

^{*} Council's choice as to whether balance will apply to this Committee. This may only happen if no member votes against this arrangement.

- + Balance disapplied by statute.
- The Head of Legal & Democratic Services has been given delegated authority to set up an Assessment Panel, a Review Panel and a Hearings Panel, each comprised of 3 Members. All members will be drawn from those on the Standards Committee. Balance is, however, disapplied by statute.
- Balance does not apply to Groups.
- Due to the Joint Arrangements and the manner in which seats are allocated by the Kent County Council, it is impossible to have a balanced allocation of seats.

Committee	Con	LD	Al	Lab	Ind	Total
* 1 x 15 Appeals	9 (9.7674405)	3 (2.7906975)	1 (1.395348)	1 (0.697674)	1 (0.697674)	15
+ 1 x 13 Licensing Health & Safety	8 (8.4651151)	2 (2.4186045)	1 (0.9069767)	1 (0.6046508)	1 (0.6046508)	13
+1 x 5 Standards	3 (3.2558135)	1 (0.9302325)	1 (0.3488372)	0 (0.232558)	0 (0.232558)	5
**1 x 15 Community Partnership Group	10 (9.7674405)	3 (2.7906975)	1 (1.0465116)	1 (0.697674)	0 (0.697674)	15
1 x 19 Policy Advisory Group	12 (12.372091)	4 (3.5348835)	1 (1.3255813)	1 (0.8837204)	1 (0.8837204)	19
^x 1 x 7 Joint Transportation	5 (4.5581389)	1 (1.3023255)	1 (0.488372)	0 (0.3255812)	0 (0.3255812)	7
^x 1 x 7 Local Development Framework Task Group	5 (4.5581389)	1 (1.3023255)	1 (0.488372)	0 (0.3255812)	0 (0.3255812)	7
					Total	81

^{* +} That the requirements of the 'Political Balance' regulations be not applied to the membership of the Appeals and the Licensing and Health & Safety Committee. The Independent Group took the one seat available between their Group and the Labour Group on the Licensing and Health & Safety Committee. The Conservative Group also gifted a seat on the Appeals Committee to allow for all Groups to be represented on that Committee.

^{**} The Labour Group took the one seat available between their Group and the Independent Group.

APPENDIX B

SELECTION AND CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 5TH MAY 2009

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES, GROUPS AND FORUMS, INCLUDING CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN

Changes to Committee membership are shown "struck through" with the proposed new Member in brackets.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (19 members)

Conservative	Liberal	Ashford	Labour	Independent
(12) Ayres	Democrat (4) Davidson (CH)	Independent (1) Davison (VC)	(1) Naughton	(1) Smith
Mrs Bell	Mrs Hawes			
Ellison	Koowaree			
(Link)				
French	Packham			
Goddard				
Mrs Heyes				
Mrs Hicks				
Miss Hodgkinson				
Howard				
Mrs Hutchinson				
(Mrs Martin)				
Wallace				
Wedgbury				

Audit Committee (8 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(5)	(1*)	(1)	(0)	(1*)
Mrs Bell	Koowaree	Mrs Laughton		Smith
(Link)				
Ellison (VC)				
Honey				
Taylor				
Wallace (CH)				

^{*} The Liberal Democrat Group has gifted one of their seats to the Independent Group

Planning Committee (14 Members) (plus 1 ex officio)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(9)	(2)	(1)	(1)	(1)
Mrs Blanford	Norris	Davison	Wells	Smith
Burgess	Packham			
Clarkson				
Clokie (EO)				
French				
Heyes				
Mrs Hicks				
Mrs Hutchinson				
Mrs Marriott				
(CH)				
Wedgbury (VC)				

Selection & Constitutional Review Committee (12 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(8)	(2)	· (1)	(1)	(0)
Bartlett (VC)	Bradberry	Davison	Wells	
Clokie (CH)	Davidson			
Ayres				
Goddard				
Mrs Heyes				
Miss Hodgkinson				
Kemp				
Mrs Martin				

*Licensing And Health And Safety Committee (13 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(8) Mrs Bell	(2) Mrs Heaton	(1) Woodford	(1) Naughton	(1) Holland
Mrs Blanford	Norris			
Ellison				
Feacey (VC)				
Goddard (CH)				
Kemp				
Link				
Mrs Martin				

Appointments Committee (5 members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(3)	(1)	· (1)	(0)	(0)
Clokie (CH)	Davidson	Mrs Laughton	Wells (invited	Smith (invited non
Kemp (Bartlett)			non voting Member)	voting Member)
Taylor			Member)	

Appeals (15 Members – 3 members to be drawn per meeting)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(9)	(3)	· (1)	(1*)	(1)
Ayres	Bradberry	Woodford	Wells	Holland
Mrs Bell	Cowley			
Ellison	Norris			
Goddard				
Mrs Hicks				
Mrs Hutchinson				
Taylor				
Wedgbury				

^{*} The Conservative Group has gifted one of their seats to the Labour Group

Standards Committee (5 members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(3)	(1)	(1)	(0)	(0)
Mrs Blanford	Mrs Hawes (VC)	Mrs Laughton		
Honey				
Wood				

Policy Advisory Group (19 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(12) Mrs Bell	(4) Bradberry	(1) Mrs Laughton	(1) Wells	(1) Holland
Burgess (VC)	Cowley	Wirs Laughton	VVCIIS	Tionand
Ellison	Mrs Heaton			
French	Packham			
	i ackiiaiii			
Heyes				
Mrs Heyes Miss Hodgkinson				
Honey				
Howard				
Mrs Martin				
Taylor (CH)				
Wallace				
vvaliace				

Joint Transportation Board (7 members plus Portfolio Holder covering Parking and Engineering Services (non-voting) and the Chairman of the Transport Forum (ex-officio))

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independe nt
(5)	(1)	(1)	(0)	(0)
Mrs Blanford	Cowley	Woodford		(-7
Burgess (CH)				
Clarkson				
Clokie				
Wedgbury				
Claughton (PH)				
(Non Voting)				
Chairman of				
Transport Forum				
(EO)				

Community Grants Panel (4 members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(1)	(1)	(1)	(1)	(0)
Mrs Hutchinson	Norris (VC)	Mrs Laughton	Wells	

Joint Consultative Committee (6 members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(2)	(1)	(1)	(1)	(1)
Clokie	Packham (Cowley)	Woodford	Naughton	Smith
Kemp (CH)	,			

Nature Conservation Forum (6 members including Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(3)	(1)	(1)	(1)	(0)
Bell (PH)	Mrs Hawes	Woodford	Naughton	
Mrs Martin				
Wedgbury (CH)				

Community Partnership Group (15 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(10) Mrs Blanford	(3) Mrs Heaton	(1) Mrs Laughton	(1) Wells	(0)
Clokie	Koowaree			
Heyes (CH)	Packham			
Mrs Heyes				
Honey (VC)				
Howard				
Mrs Hutchinson				
Kemp				
Mrs Martin				
Wedgbury				

Parish Forum (6 members including the Portfolio Holder for Parishing/Forums)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(2)	(2)	(1)	(1)	(0)
Claughton	Davidson	Davison	Wells	Smith
Clokie (CH)				

Transport Forum (7 members including the Portfolio Holder covering Parking/Engineering Services)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(4)	(1)	(1)	(1)	(0)
Claughton (PH)	Cowley (VC)	Woodford	Wells	
Goddard				
Heyes (CH)				
Wedgbury				

Member Training Panel (8 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(2)	(2)	(2)	(1)	(1)
Clarkson	Mrs Heaton	Mrs Laughton	Wells	Holland (VC)
Taylor	Koowaree	Woodford		,
	(CH)			

Local Development Framework Task Group (7 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford	Labour	Independent
(5) Burgess (CH)	(1) Cowley	Independent (1) Davison	(0)	(0)
	(Packham)			
Heyes				
Honey				
Mrs Marriott				
(VC)				
Wood				

Parish Council Review and Polling District Review Task Group (10 Members)

Conservative	Liberal Democrat	Ashford Independent	Labour	Independent
(6) Mrs Bell	(2) Bradberry	(1) Davison	(1) Wells	(0)
Clokie	Packham			
Goddard				
Mrs Marriott				
Wedgbury				
Wood				

APPENDIX C Minute No. 548/5/09 refers ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

APPOINTMENT/NOMINATION TO OUTSIDE BODIES/ORGANISATIONS

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
Action With Communities in Rural Kent	Cllr Mrs Blanford Substitute: Cllr Bradberry	
Alzheimer's Society – Ashford and Shepway Branch	Cllr Ayres	
Ashford Almshouses Charity	Cllr Howard Cllr Koowaree	3 year period expiring 30/11/10
	Cllr Claughton Cllr Feacey	5 year period expiring 31/5/14
Ashford Choral Society	The Mayor – President	Ongoing
Ashford Community Arts Trust	Portfolio Holder for Cultural Services	Ongoing
Ashford Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership	Portfolio Holder for Communications, Parking/Licensing Customer Services and Community Safety	Ongoing
Ashford Federation of the Arts	Cllr Mrs Heaton	
Ashford's Future Delivery Board	Leader of the Council Chief Executive Observer: Cllr Wells	Ongoing
Ashford's Future SPV Board	Cllr Bartlett Alternative: Leader of the Council	
Ashford Home Improvement Agency Support Group	Cllr Norris	
Ashford Leisure Trust	Cllr Wallace	

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
Ashford Mediation Service – Management Committee	Cllr Mrs Hawes Patron: The Mayor	
Ashford (Kent) Old People's Welfare Committee	Cllrs Kemp Koowaree Mrs Laughton	
Ashford Parochial Charities	Cllr Howard Cllr Koowaree	3 year period expiring 30/11/10
	Cllr Heyes Cllr Kemp	5 year period expiring 31/5/14
Ashford Sure Start (Fifth Wave) Partnership	Cllr Naughton	
Ashford Twinning Association (Bad Münstereifel and Fougères)	The Mayor	Ongoing
Ashford Twinning Association (Member Champion)	Cllr Howard	
Ashford Youth Centres Trustees	Cllr Mrs Hutchinson	
Ashford Youth Forum Trustees	Cllr Mrs Hutchinson	
Ashford Winkle Club	The Mayor (Honorary Member)	Ongoing
Bockhanger Community Trust	Cllr Claughton	
Channel Corridor Partnership	Leader of the Council Chief Executive	Ongoing
Citizens' Advice Bureau Ashford Branch Management Committee	Cllrs Ellison (Voting) Cllr Mrs Heaton (Non Voting)	
Citizens Rights for Older People	Cllr Davidson	
Downland Housing Association (East) Tenant Consultative Panel	Cllr Wells	
Dungeness Power Station Site Stakeholder Group	Cllr Naughton	

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
East Kent Joint Arrangements Committee	Cllr Clokie Cllr Wood	
East Kent Joint Scrutiny Committee	Cllr Burgess Cllr Packham Cllr Taylor	
East Kent NHS Foundation Trust Board	Cllr Kemp	
Elwick Club	Mayor & Mayoress (Honorary Members)	Ongoing
Headcorn Aerodrome Consultative Committee	Member from the Weald North Ward (Cllr Ellison)	Ongoing
High Level Forum	Leader of the Council Substitute: Deputy Leader of the Council	Ongoing
High Weald (AONB) Joint Advisory Group	Cllr Taylor Substitute: Cllr Packham	
Home-Start, Ashford: Management Committee	Cllr Goddard	
Hopewell Twinning Association (Member Champion)	Cllr Howard	
Julie Rose Stadium Board	Cllr Davidson Cllr Ellison	
Kennington Parochial Charities (Two Nominative Trustees)	Cllr Kemp Mrs N Smyth	Annual Meeting 2012 (4 year period) Annual Meeting 2010 (2 year period)
Kent County Constabulary Briefings	Cllrs Holland Link Naughton Packham	
Kent County Forum for Sport	Portfolio Holder – Cultural Services and Cultural Projects Manager	Ongoing
Kent County Playing Fields Association	Cllr Clarkson	

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
Kent Downs (AONB) Joint Advisory Committee and Executive Committee	Cllr Mrs Marriott Substitute: Cllr Woodford	
Kent Education Local Member Briefings	Cllrs Clokie Davidson Mrs Laughton Wells	
Kent Transport Board	Cllr Burgess Substitute: Cllr Kemp	
Leaders/Chief Executive Forum (formerly KALA)	Leader of the Council Chief Executive	Ongoing
Local Government Association	Leader of the Council	Ongoing
General Assembly Urban Commission	Deputy Leader of the Council	Ongoing
Rural Commission	Cllr Mrs Blanford Substitute: Leader of the Council	Ongoing
Local Strategic Partnership	Leader of the Council Chief Executive	Ongoing
	Observers: Cllr Davison Cllr Mrs Hutchinson Cllr Wells	
Mid Kent Downs (AONB) Advisory Group	Cllr Mrs Blanford	
	Substitute: Cllr Mrs Hawes	
National Council on Inland Transport – Executive Committee	Cllr Cowley	
National Parking & Adjudication Service – Joint Committee	Portfolio Holder for Communications, Parking/Licensing Customer Services and Community Safety Substitute: Cllr Bartlett	
Relate East Kent (Marriage Guidance Council)	Cllr Ellison	

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
River Stour Internal Drainage Board	Cllrs Mrs Martin Naughton Woodford Mr I Cooling Mr P Howard	
Romney Marshes Area Internal Drainage Board	Cllr Davison 2007-2009 (sub 2009-2011) Cllr Hicks 2009-2011 (sub 2007-2009)	
Rural Development Area – Strategic Panel	Portfolio Holder – Cultural Services Substitute: Cllr Mrs Marriott	Ongoing
Sandyacres Trust	Cllr Wallace	
Sargent Cancer Care for Children	The Mayor (Patron)	Ongoing
Singleton Environment Centre Management Advisory Board	Cllr Miss Hodgkinson	Annual Meeting 2011 (3 year period)
South Ashford Youth Club – Management Committee	Cllr Davidson	
South East Employers	Cllr Kemp Substitute: Cllr Bartlett	
South East England Councils	Leader of the Council Substitute: Cllr Kemp	Ongoing
Supporting People Commissioning Body	Portfolio Holder for Housing, Property & Corporate Governance Substitute: Head of Housing	Ongoing
Tourism South East - Quarterly Forum and Annual Meeting	Cllr Mrs Hutchinson Substitute: Cllr Kemp	

NAME OF BODY	NEW REPRESENTATIVES/ NOMINEES	RETIREMENT DATE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED – ANNUAL MEETING 2009)
Town Centre Partnership:		
Environment Working Group	Cllr Goddard Substitute: Cllr Mrs Hawes	
Management Board	Chief Executive Leader of the Council	Ongoing
Marketing & Promotions Working Group	Cllr Davison Substitute: Cllr Packham	
Transport Working Group	Cllr Heyes Substitute: Cllr Packham	
Tenterden Folk Day Trust	Cllr Goddard	
Tenterden Leisure Centre Trust	Cllr Mrs Hutchinson	
Volunteering Ashford	Cllr Feacey	
Willesborough Charities – Nomination of Two Trustees	Cllr Davidson Cllr Smith	
Willesborough Windmill Trust Limited	Cllr Davidson	
Wye Rural Museum Trust	Mr Farrant	May 2012

Agenda Item No:

Report To: SELECTION & CONSTITUTIONAL

REVIEW COMMITTEE

ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 10TH JUNE 2009

Report Title: Annual Governance Statement

Report Author: Philip Bond – Senior Performance & Improvement Officer

Summary: Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 the Council

was required to review, at least once a year, the effectiveness of its systems of internal control and include a statement on internal control with the Council's Statement of Accounts.

Following a CIPFA/SOLACE review on local authority governance in 2007 the requirement to publish a Statement on Internal Control has been replaced by the requirement to publish a more wide ranging Annual Governance Statement.

The attached Annual Governance Statement meets this statutory requirement.

Key Decision: YES

Affected Wards: None

Recommendations: Selection & Constitutional Review Committee be asked

to:-

Consider the Annual Governance

StatementRecommend the approval of the Annual

Governance Statement to the Council.

Financial Implications:

None

Risk Assessment YES - The Annual Governance Statement may be considered

as an assessment of risk to the Council.

Background

Papers:

None

Contacts: philip.bond@ashford.gov.uk - Tel: 01233 330 403

Report Title: Annual Governance Statement

Purpose of the Report

The Annual Governance Statement is an assurance that the Council has a sound system of governance and internal control designed to help and manage risk in relation to the delivery of the Council's stated aims and ambitions. This statement illustrates the systems of governance and internal controls in place within the Council and shows to Members and the public that the governance framework and internal controls of the Council accord with proper practice.

Issue to be Decided

- Selection & Constitutional Review Committee be asked to:-
 - Consider the Annual Governance Statement
 - Recommend the approval of the Annual Governance Statement to the Council

Background

- 3. In 2008 the Council approved an amendment to the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee's terms of reference to widen its terms to include consideration and recommendation of approval, to the Council, of the Annual Governance Statement.
- 4. Accordingly the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee is asked to consider and recommend for approval by the Council the Annual Governance Statement attached.

Risk Assessment

5. As part of the review of the effectiveness of the Council's governance arrangements the way risk is dealt with by the Council is considered and any major risks are included within the Annual Governance Statement.

Consultation

- 6. The Annual Governance Statement has been considered by the Governance Management Board which consists of the Chairs of the Audit Committee, Standards Committee, Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Selection & Constitutional Review Committee. Also on the Governance Management Board are the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, The Monitoring Officer and the Head of Internal Audit.
- 7. Following a meeting of the Governance Management Board the board recommend the Annual Governance Statement for approval.

Handling

8. Exceptions listed within the Annual Governance Statement will be reported upon on a quarterly basis to either the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee or the Audit Committee as indicated with the Annual Governance Statement.

Conclusion

9. The Council's governance framework and arrangements, including its systems of internal control, which were in place within the Council for the period 2008-2009, other than those reported upon within the Annual Governance Statement, accord with proper practice

Contact:	Philip Bond – Senior Performance & Improvement Officer
Email:	philip.bond@ashford.gov.uk



Annual Governance Statement (2008-2009)



Annual Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

Ashford Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Ashford Borough Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Ashford Borough Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.

Ashford Borough Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework *Delivering Good Governance in Local Government*. A copy of this code is available on our web site or from Ashford Borough Council's council offices'. The statement explains how Ashford Borough Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework and System of Internal Control

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Ashford Borough Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realized and the impact should they be realized and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Ashford Borough Council for the year ended 31st March 2009 and up to the date of the approval of the statement of accounts.

The Governance Framework

The key elements of Ashford Borough Council's corporate governance and internal control environment are as follows. Some of the elements can be placed in multiple categories however, for simplicity, the elements are only included once below.

Community Focus

- The Council's long term, medium term and short-term vision and objectives are set out in its Corporate Plan, Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Development Framework. Monitoring against the objectives of these visions and objectives is undertaken by the Executive, Overview & Scrutiny and ultimately the full Council.
- 2. In May 2007 the Council formally adopted a new Corporate Plan for the period 2007-2010. All services develop Service Plans that are updated annually and which enable the Council to implement and deliver the Corporate Plan. During 2008-2009 the Council refreshed and updated both its Corporate Plan and its Sustainable Community Strategy
- Due to the increasing importance of partnerships the Council formed the Community Partnership Group during 2007. This Group operates in a similar manner to a Policy Advisory Group with the ability to make recommendations to the Executive in relation to Council partnerships.
- 4. All legally binding partnerships have formal terms of reference agreed and adopted by the partners. During 2008-2009 the Council adopted a new Partnership Framework which outlines the way in which the Council will approach forming partnerships. The new framework advocates taking a risk based approach to forming partnerships and the governance arrangements that should be implemented for each partnership.

Performance Management

- 5. Through reviews by external auditors, external agencies, Internal Audit and internal groups, the Council constantly seeks ways of ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources and for securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
- 6. Services are delivered by trained and experienced people with appropriate professional qualifications. In 2007-2008 the Council successfully renewed its Investors in People accreditation. All posts have a detailed job description and person specifications. Training needs are identified through Personal Development Discussions and needs are fulfilled by a combination of internal and external training providers.
- 7. During 2008-2009 the Council began rolling out its new Talent Management process. Talent Management aims to identity the skills that the Council requires in the future and to develop its staff in order to match these requirements where possible.

- 8. All new Members are provided with an induction programme which provides training, information and assistance in those areas that members will deal with on a regular basis. The Monitoring Officer manages the Annual Training Plan for members which provides additional training as identified by Members or Officers. Briefing sessions are provided to Members when necessary to provide members with more information on various topics and comprehensive training is provided to Members on the Licensing and Planning Committees.
- 9. Senior Officer training requirements are identified, as with other officers, through the Council's PDD process. The Council also runs tailored Leadership programmes aimed at providing training and guidance to senior Officers of the Council to enable them to perform their roles more efficiently and effectively.
- 10. The Council has an effective performance management framework. The system is driven by the Corporate Plan which focuses attention on corporate priorities. This is cascaded through departmental service plans, individual employee appraisals and action plans. It provides the mechanism for targets, performance indicators and objectives to be reviewed by the Executive and Scrutiny Committees and for reviews of Service Objectives to be fed back into the policy and planning cycle.
- 11. As part of the performance management framework the Council conducts quarterly performance management meetings for all services. These meetings review the services performance in relation to performance indicators, budget monitoring, service plan delivery, health & safety and service risk updates and reports. During 2008-2009 the performance management meetings were expanded to include work each service area is conducting in relation to equalities.

Structures and Processes

- 12. The Council has adopted a constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and that the Council is accountable to local people.
- 13. Most major policy issues are considered by the Executive Committee in public meetings on the basis of published reports. Where necessary, recommendations to the full Council are then made based upon these considerations. The facilitation of policy and decision-making is through the Policy Advisory Group. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee provides a scrutiny function over the decisions made by the Executive as well as providing public reviews of issues or council services that effect local people. In addition senior officers of the council can make decisions under delegated authority within the parameters set out in a published Scheme of Delegation. The Council publishes a Forward Plan which contains details of key decisions to be made by the Council, its committees and officers under their delegated powers.
- 14. Members of the public have the right to attend meetings of the Council and its Committees to listen to the debate. To enhance the publics ability to contribute to the democratic process the Council maintains a comprehensive Scheme of Public Participation. The Scheme provides members of the public with the ability to submit petitions and speak at all meetings of the Council and its Committees

(other than the Planning Committee and Overview & Scrutiny Committee, which have their own arrangements for consulting the public).

Risk Management & Internal Control

- 15. The Council's Risk Management Strategy was approved by the Executive on 23rd March 2006. Annual Service and Strategic Risk assessments are undertaken and from the assessments Service and Strategic Risk Registers and Service and Strategic Risk Action Plans are created. These are reviewed on a quarterly basis (half yearly for Strategic Risk). Risk management is becoming firmly embedded throughout the Council and the Deputy Leader of the Council's Portfolio of responsibilities now includes Risk and Business Continuity. There are clear linkages between objectives and the risk evaluation process that ensures that service risks are minimized and aligned to delivery of the Council's Corporate Plan.
- 16. The Council has a comprehensive Health & Safety Policy in place and a Risk Register for the protection of staff. Operational issues are overseen by an officer working group which conducts on-going and comprehensive audit and assessment of Health & Safety throughout all services,
- 17. The Council has designated the Head of Legal & Democratic Services as Monitoring Officer. It is the function of the Monitoring officer to monitor compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. After consulting with the Head of Paid Service and Chief Finance Officer, the Monitoring Officer will report to the Executive or the Council if he considers that any proposal, decision or omission has given rise to or would give rise to a contravention of any enactment or rule of law or maladministration following an Ombudsman investigation. Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered.
- 18. The financial management of the authority is conducted in accordance with the financial rules set out in Part 4 of the Constitution and within Financial Regulations. The Council has designated the Deputy Chief Executive as Chief Finance Officer in accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Chief Finance Officer has statutory responsibilities to determine, monitor and report on the Council's financial arrangements including reporting on any unlawful or potentially unlawful decisions. The Council has in place a MTFP (Medium Term Financial Plan), updated annually, to support the medium-term aims of the Corporate Plan. Financial monitoring arrangements are in place and reported at least quarterly to the Executive.
- 19. The Council's Audit Committee provides independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework and associated control environment. It also provides independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the Council's exposure to risk and weakens the control environment.
- 20. The Council maintains an Internal Audit Section, managed from September 2005 by a partnership arrangement with Maidstone Borough Council, which

operates to the standards set out in the 'Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK'. During 2008/09 the Audit Commission conducted its triennial review of the adequacy of internal audit within the Council and concluded that it fully met the statutory standards set out in the CIPFA Code of practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.

21. The Council has an objective and professional relationship with external auditors and statutory inspectors as evidenced by the Annual Audit Letter.

Standards of Conduct

- 22. The Council has in place robust arrangements to ensure probity in all its decision-making. It adopted the model code of conduct in 2002 and it adopted the revised model code of conduct during 2007.
- 23. The Council has adopted a comprehensive good practice protocol for councillors dealing with planning matters. The Council's Standards Committee, chaired by an independent member of the public oversees conduct issues. The Standards Committee has in place fully documented procedures for making local filtering decisions on complaints made about borough or parish councillor conduct. Where these result in local investigations, hearings will be held by sub committees in accordance with statutory requirements. In-house and external training has been undertaken for councillors on probity matters.
- 24. The Council has adopted a Whistleblowing Policy which is incorporated within the conditions of service for officers and is reviewed on an annual basis. The Whistleblowing Policy allows any officer within the Council to raise legitimate concerns relating to any unlawful conduct, fraud, corruption or dangers to the public or the environment that they believe exist without fear of retribution or reprisal of any kind.
- 25. The Council has a comprehensive complaints procedure which allows anyone to make a complaint about the Council and the services it provides. The Council is committed to providing a full and fair investigation on any complaint received.

Review of Corporate Governance

- 26. The Council has a local code of Corporate Governance which constitutes the governance framework for the Council. Following revised guidance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE during 2007 the Council revised the Local Code of Corporate Governance and this revised version was approved during 2008-2009.
- 27. The Local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed on an annual basis and the report into the Local Code will be produced annually as the Council's Annual Governance Statement. Following the review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2008-2009 no changes have been proposed.

Review of Effectiveness

28. Ashford Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of the effectiveness is informed by

- the work of the executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.
- 29. The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework and system of internal control includes:
- 30. During 2007-2008, in light of the new governance framework published by CIPFA/SOLACE, the Council reconsidered its arrangements for reviewing governance issues and in its approach to formulating and considering the Council's Annual Governance Statement. A governance management board was formed consisting of the Chairs of the Audit, Standards, Overview & Scrutiny and Selection & Constitutional Review committees as well as the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Director for Community Engagement, Head of Legal & Democratic Services and the Head of Internal Audit. This board is responsible for considering the Annual Governance Statement and recommending its adoption to the Selection & Constitutional Review committee.
- 31. As part of the review of the Council's governance arrangements the Council has decided to continue to publish a Statement on Internal Control. The Statement will focus on financial and risk management issues and will continue to be considered by the Audit Committee. Any exceptions identified within the Statement on Internal Control will be included within the Annual Governance Statement.
- 32. The Head of Legal & Democratic Services (the 'Monitoring Officer') has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its aims and principles are given full effect. The Council's constitution was refreshed and updated during the course of 2007-2008.
- 33. The Monitoring Officer presents an annual report to the Council and the Standards Committee regarding probity and code of conduct issues. His annual report for 2008-2009 will be presented to the Council in July 2009 and it will show that the incidence of formal complaints about parish councillors is low, whilst there have been no formal complaints against borough councillors during 2008-2009.
- 34. The Council has an Executive Committee which carries out the functions of the Council which are not exercised by the Council itself or delegated by the Council to a Committee or to an Officer. The Executive is responsible for executive functions which involve a recommendation to the Council including budget and policy proposals. The Executive is also responsible for making key decisions on any matter determined in the forward plan and included in the budget. The Executive is also responsible for receiving and responding to reports from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the Monitoring officer, the Chief Finance (Section 151) officer and recommendations from the Council.
- 35. The Council has appointed a Standards Committee to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and to assist Members in observing the Members' Code of Conduct. The Standards Committee also advises the Council

on all matters relating to the Code of Conduct including revisions to the Code, monitoring of the operation of the Code and training and arranging for training of Members on matters relating to the Code. The Standards Committee now also has a duty to consider locally all complaints of code of conduct breaches against parish or borough councillors. The Standards Committee has the power to censure, suspend or partially suspend a Member in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 or other relevant statute or regulation.

- 36. The Council has an Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It can "call in" a decision which has been made by the Executive but not yet implemented, to enable them to consider whether the decision is appropriate. It allow matters of wide ranging interest to the Council to be publicly reviewed and scrutinised. During 2008-2009 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee called in one decision made by the Executive Committee in relation to relocation of the town's market.
- 37. The Community Partnership Group reviews the progress on the Local Strategic Partnership as well as the operation and effectiveness of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and Community Safety Strategy. It also considers proposals and outcomes of the Ashford Future Partnership and considers the implications for Ashford of the Kent Partnership, Kent Public Service Board and the Kent Local Area Agreement.
- 38. During 2007-2008 the Council reviewed the operation and effectiveness of the Ashford's Future Partnership. As a result of this review the Council and its partners drew up and signed a more formal Partnership Agreement and subsequently (in November 2008) established a Special Purpose Vehicle (the Ashford's Future Company Ltd) to help ensure the more effective delivery of the desired outcomes of the partners and the public. The members of the company (Ashford Borough Council, Kent County Council, the South East England Development Agency and English Partnerships, now the Homes and Communities Agency) agreed the Memorandum and Articles of Association for the Company and entered into a Members' Agreement to govern their approach to the business of the company. These arrangements fully protect the interests of the Council in respect of the operation of the Company. The four Founding Partners have also entered into a formal Service Level Agreement with the Company in respect of the overall programme management function it carries out on behalf of the Partnership Board. The Company Business Plan has to be approved by the Partnership Board. The Council remains the statutory planning authority for the whole Borough Council area, and is the Accountable Body for the bulk of the capital funding available to the Partnership although it has formally delegated much of the day to day administration to the Company.
- 39. The Crime and Disorder Reduction (CDRP) partnership holds weekly liaison meetings of the partner groups to assess issues surrounding anti-social behaviour. The Community Safety Unit reports on a quarterly basis to the Community Safety Partnership providing an overview of the activity of the CDRP.
- 40. Extensive governance arrangements have been put in place to in relation to the Kent Local Area Agreement (KLAA). The Governance Framework sets out the roles, accountabilities and responsibilities of those involved with the KLAA and how performance, risk and finance will be managed. The Kent Public Service

- Board, on behalf of the Kent Partnership, oversees the implementation of the Governance Framework for the KLAA.
- 41. During 2007 a review of the Council's Overview & Scrutiny (O&S) function and Policy Advisory Groups (PAGs) was carried out. This review looked at the lack of clarity about the respective roles of the O&S and PAGs in relation to policy development and uncertainty about how best O&S should carry out its scrutiny function. The results of this review recommended that there be one Overview & Scrutiny Committee and one Policy Advisory Group with more focused and specific roles. These changes were implemented during 2008-2009.
- 42. The Council holds an annual State of the Borough Debate. This meeting allows for the widest possible public involvement and provides a further opportunity for public questioning and scrutiny of the Council and its activities. The results of the debate are disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to agencies and organisations in the area. The results are also considered by the Executive when proposing the budget and policy framework to the Council for the forthcoming year.
- 43. The Council has an Audit Committee that undertakes the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA's *Audit Committees Practical guidance for Local Authorities*. The Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing the adequacy of internal controls and monitoring the performance of internal audit. It also reviews the External Audit Plan, reviews the Annual Audit Commission Letter, reviews the adequacy of arrangements for Risk Management within the Council and approves the Council's financial accounts.
- 44. Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of systems of internal control. A risk model is used to formulate a three-year plan, which is approved by the Audit Committee, from which the annual workload is identified. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be submitted to the relevant Head of Service with a copy to the Chief Executive and the Directors. The report includes recommendations for improvements to internal controls and these are detailed within an Action Plan for agreement or rejection by Heads of Service. The process also allows for follow up work to be completed for all reports issued in order to confirm that the action proposed by the Head of Service has been implemented in practice. The results of the follow-up are reported to the Head of Service, the Chief Executive and Directors and reported to the Audit Committee on a six monthly basis.
- 45. To further strengthen the governance of the Council for 2008-2009, all internal audits that returned an assurance control level of minimal or limited during this period (and where a follow-up audit has not been undertaken by the 31st March 2009 to confirm that the control weaknesses have been rectified) will be included within the Annual Governance Statement where the control issues have strategic or material implications to the Council. Internal audits with a minimal or limited assurance that are not considered strategic or material to the Council but to impact only locally on a service/function will continue to be reported upon to the Audit Committee by the Head of Internal Audit.
- 46. As part of the monitoring of the Internal Control processes within the Council, Internal Audit issue an Annual Report that considers the work of Internal Audit over the financial year and the Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit in relation to

the Council's control environment. Due consideration is given to this report and the reports conclusions are used to inform the judgment on the Annual Governance Statement. For 2008-2009 the Head of Internal Audit's report entitled Internal Audit Annual Report 2008-2009 concluded that generally, a substantial level of internal control exists within the Council's systems and procedures subject to the qualifications recorded within the report.

- 47. The Internal Audit Section is subject to regular appraisal by the Council's external auditors who review the adequacy of compliance with the Code of Practice for Internal Audit. The external auditors place reliance on the work carried out by Internal Audit subject to being satisfied with the quality and comprehensiveness of the work. For the financial year 2008-2009 they were able so to do. During 2008 the Audit Commission carried out their triennial review of the adequacy of Internal Audit within the Council. The Audit Commission's auditors concluded that the service fully meets the statutory standards which are contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.
- 48. Apart from forming a view on the effectiveness of the Council's Internal Audit arrangements the Council's External Auditor provides a check on the overall effectiveness of the Council's governance arrangements including separate service based audits through to the approval of the Council's Statement of Accounts.
- 49.A report on progress against National Indicator and Local targets and budget monitoring is brought to Management Team and the Executive as part of the Quarterly Budget and Performance Monitoring Report. Monthly updates are available on all National and Local Indicators on the Internet and Intranet. Monthly monitoring reports on budgets are prepared and are posted on the intranet.
- 50. Following the publication of the framework 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government' by CIPFA/SOLACE in 2007 the Council undertook a review of its Local Code of Corporate Governance. Following this review a revised Code was approved and adopted in 2008-2009. In line with the revised framework and the Council's revised Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council will now publish an Annual Governance Statement (this document) on an annual basis. Any major exceptions which are identified will be reported upon on a quarterly basis to the Audit Committee or Selection and Constitutional review Committee dependant upon the nature of the exception.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework by the Audit Committee, Selection & Constitutional Review Committee, Management Team and other senior officers of the council and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Significant Governance Issues

The following significant governance issues have been identified during the period 2008-2009. These exceptions and the actions being taken to rectify them will be reported upon to the Audit Committee or Selection & Constitutional Review Committee (as indicated) on a quarterly basis within a governance issues report.

Exception	Description/Action
Partnership Framework (S&CR)	During 2008-2009 the Council adopted a new Partnership Framework. As part of the framework Management Team must review the Council's partnerships and identify those partnerships that should be considered as key partnerships. This review is still outstanding and will be undertaken during 2009-2010.
Race Equality Scheme and Gender Equality Scheme (S&CR)	The Council's Race Equality Scheme was due to be reviewed in 2005 and this review is still outstanding and needs to be urgently undertaken. Although identified as an exception during 2007-2008 further work on this was delayed. Additionally the Council's Gender Equality Scheme went out for consultation during 2007-2008 and further progress needs to be made so the Council can adopt the scheme. (Overview and Scrutiny have been asked to review the Council's current position in relation to equality work).
ICT Physical and Environmental Controls (AC)	An internal audit into ICT physical and environmental controls highlighted a number of control weaknesses. A follow-up audit will be conducted during 2009-2010 to monitor improvements that have been made as a result of the audit's recommendations.
Scheme of Public Participation. (S&CR)	The Council's Scheme of Public Participation (contained within the Constitution) needs to be reviewed to see whether more public engagement can be achieved particularly in relation to e-petitioning. Work on this was deferred during 2008-2009 as the Government introduced the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill into the House of Lords. The Bill covers various aspects of public participation and it is prudent to await the final legislation and then review the council's procedures in light of the legislation.

Exception	Description/Action
Recruitment (S&CR)	Following an audit of recruitment, various control weaknesses were indentified in relation to statutory requirements relating to equalities and other issues. A follow-up audit will take place during 2009-2010 to ensure the necessary improvements have been made.
Debtors (AC)	Some recommendations from a previous debtors audit had not been carried out during a follow-up audit in November 2008. The Head of Financial Services has compiled a comprehensive action plan setting out a schedule to implement all of the audit recommendations and a follow-up audit will be conducted during early 2009-2010 to review progress
Grounds Maintenance (AC)	The initial audit concluded that control assurance was substantial. However, this opinion gave some consideration to the expectation that the audit recommendations would be implemented. The follow-up in May 2008 found that the majority of the recommendations had not been implemented. A second follow-up audit will take place in 2009 and this will be reported upon to the Audit Committee at its June 2009 meeting.
Financial reporting (AC)	The Audit Commission undertake an annual Use of Resources review of the Council. For the past four years the Council has received a score of 1 (out of 4) for Financial Reporting even though improving our result for this element of the Use of Resources has been considered a priority. It is proposed to maintain Financial Reporting as an exception until the Council's Statement of Accounts are approved by the Audit Commission with no material errors being identified.
Corporate Complaints (S&CR)	An internal audit into the Council's Corporate Complaints procedures returned a control assurance of 'limited'. A comprehensive response has been received to the audit and a follow-up audit will take place in early 2009-2010 to check if the audit report's recommendations have been implemented.

Exception	Description/Action
Housing Contracts (AC)	An internal audit of Housing Contracts identified a number of occurrences where Council Contract procedure rules had not been adhered to. A follow-up audit will take place during 2009-2010 to confirm that recommendations contained within the audit have been implemented.
Management of utility provision and purchasing arrangements	Work during 2008-2009 identified a number of weaknesses with regards to the management of the supply, use and purchasing of utilities (specifically electricity and gas). A review of the Council's contractual and management arrangements for the supply of electricity and gas will take place during 2009-2010

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters and further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified on our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation at our next annual review.

Chief Executive	Leader of the Council
Dated	